Refrigerant Management Program (RMP)

Refrigerant Registration and Reporting (R3)



USER'S MANUAL

January 11, 2012 California Environmental Protection Agency

Prepared by AgreeYa Solutions



Revision Sheet

Release No.	Date	Revision Description		
Rev. 0	12/23/2011	Initial draft RMP-R3 User's Manual		
Rev. 1	1/11/12	Multiple changes based on comment from K. Bowers, S. Church, R. Bell		

R3 USER'S MANUAL

TABLE OF CONTENTS

1. GE	NERAL INFORMATION	1
1.1.	Background	1
1.2.	System Overview	1
1.3.	Project References	3
1.4.	Authorized Use Permission	3
1.5.	Points of Contact	3
1.6.	Acronyms and Abbreviations	3
2. SYS	TEM SUMMARY	6
2.1.	System Configuration	6
2.2.	Data Flows	6
2.3.	User Access Levels	7
2.4.	Contingencies and Alternate Modes of Operation	7
3. GET	TTING STARTED	
3.1.	Registration for Companies	. 10
3.1.1	. Process Steps for Complete Registration of Companies and Facilities	10
3.1.2 3.1.3		
3.2.	Logging On	
3.2. 3.3.	Home Page	
5.5. 3.4.	Main Menu	
3.4. 3.4.1		
3.4.1	1	
3.4.1		
3.4.1	.3. Annual Reporting	
3.4.1	.4. Payments	16
3.4.1	· · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · ·	
3.4.1	.6. Inspections	.16
3.5.	Recovering Forgotten Username or Password	. 16
3.6.	Changing User Profile and Password	. 17
3.7.	Managing Users	. 17
3.8.	Adding New User	. 18
3.9.	Exit System - Logout	. 18

	3.9.1.	Automatic Logout – Session Timeout	19
4.	USIN	G THE RMP-R3 APPLICATION - COMPANIES	21
		Add and Manage Facilities	
	4.1.1.	Add New Facility	
	4.1.2.	Delete One or More Facilities	
	4.1.3.	View or Edit Existing Facility	
	4.1.4.	Maintain Refrigeration Systems	
	4.1.5.	Delete One or More Refrigeration Systems	
	4.1.6.	Add, View or Edit Refrigeration System	
	4.1.7.	Maintain Automatic Leak Detection Systems (ALD).	
	4.1.8.	Delete One or More Automatic Leak Detection Systems (ALD)	
	4.1.9.	Add, View or Edit Automatic Leak Detection System	
	4.1.10 4.2.	Add or Edit Service Records Enter or File Annual Report	
	4.2.	Phase-in Schedule for Annual Reports and Fees	
	4.2.1.	Annual Report for Company with Refrigeration Facilities	
		Annual Report for Company with Refrigeration Pacifices	
	4.2.3.	Annual Reports for Distributors/Wholesalers and Reclaimers	
	4.2.4.	Annual Fee Payments	
5.	USIN	G THE RMP-R3 APPLICATION – AIR DISTRICTS and ARB ENFORCEMENT	38
	5.1.	Air District and ARB Enforcement Roles	38
	5.2.	Facility Inspections	38
	5.2.]	Facility Inspections Un-Registered Facilities	
	5.2.1.	Un-Registered Facilities	
	5.2.1. 5.2.2. 5.2.3. 5.2.4.	Un-Registered Facilities Facility Screen Printing Pre-filled Facility Inspection Forms Inspection Screens	38 39 39 40
	5.2.1. 5.2.2. 5.2.3. 5.2.4. 5.2.5.	Un-Registered Facilities Facility Screen Printing Pre-filled Facility Inspection Forms Inspection Screens Inspection of Distributor/Wholesaler or Certified Reclaimer	38 39 40 42
	5.2.1. 5.2.2. 5.2.3. 5.2.4. 5.2.5. 5.2.6.	Un-Registered Facilities Facility Screen Printing Pre-filled Facility Inspection Forms Inspection Screens Inspection of Distributor/Wholesaler or Certified Reclaimer Manager Inspection Review	
	5.2.1. 5.2.2. 5.2.3. 5.2.4. 5.2.5. 5.2.6. 5.3.	Un-Registered Facilities Facility Screen Printing Pre-filled Facility Inspection Forms Inspection Screens Inspection of Distributor/Wholesaler or Certified Reclaimer Manager Inspection Review Special Instructions for Error Correction	38 39 40 42 43 43
	5.2.1. 5.2.2. 5.2.3. 5.2.4. 5.2.5. 5.2.6. 5.3.	Un-Registered Facilities Facility Screen Printing Pre-filled Facility Inspection Forms Inspection Screens Inspection of Distributor/Wholesaler or Certified Reclaimer Manager Inspection Review Special Instructions for Error Correction Screen Entries	
	5.2.1. 5.2.2. 5.2.3. 5.2.4. 5.2.5. 5.2.6. 5.3. 5.3.1. 5.3.2.	Un-Registered Facilities Facility Screen Printing Pre-filled Facility Inspection Forms Inspection Screens Inspection of Distributor/Wholesaler or Certified Reclaimer Manager Inspection Review Special Instructions for Error Correction Screen Entries Other Errors	
	5.2.1. 5.2.2. 5.2.3. 5.2.4. 5.2.5. 5.2.6. 5.3. 5.3.1. 5.3.2.	Un-Registered Facilities Facility Screen Printing Pre-filled Facility Inspection Forms Inspection Screens Inspection of Distributor/Wholesaler or Certified Reclaimer Manager Inspection Review Special Instructions for Error Correction Screen Entries	
6.	5.2.1. 5.2.2. 5.2.3. 5.2.4. 5.2.5. 5.2.6. 5.3. 5.3.1. 5.3.2. 5.4.	Un-Registered Facilities Facility Screen Printing Pre-filled Facility Inspection Forms Inspection Screens Inspection of Distributor/Wholesaler or Certified Reclaimer Manager Inspection Review Special Instructions for Error Correction Screen Entries Other Errors	38 39 40 42 43 43 43 44 44
6.	5.2.1. 5.2.2. 5.2.3. 5.2.4. 5.2.5. 5.2.6. 5.3. 5.3.1. 5.3.2. 5.4. USIN	Un-Registered Facilities Facility Screen Printing Pre-filled Facility Inspection Forms Inspection Screens Inspection of Distributor/Wholesaler or Certified Reclaimer Manager Inspection Review Special Instructions for Error Correction Screen Entries Other Errors Caveats and Exceptions	38 39 40 42 43 43 43 44 44 44
6.	5.2.1. 5.2.2. 5.2.3. 5.2.4. 5.2.5. 5.2.6. 5.3. 5.3.1. 5.3.2. 5.4. USIN 6.1.	Un-Registered Facilities Facility Screen Printing Pre-filled Facility Inspection Forms Inspection Screens Inspection of Distributor/Wholesaler or Certified Reclaimer Manager Inspection Review Special Instructions for Error Correction Screen Entries Other Errors Caveats and Exceptions <i>G THE XML UPLOAD (Optional)</i>	
6.	5.2.1. 5.2.2. 5.2.3. 5.2.4. 5.2.5. 5.2.6. 5.3. 5.3.1. 5.3.2. 5.4. USIN 6.1. 6.2.	Un-Registered Facilities Facility Screen Printing Pre-filled Facility Inspection Forms Inspection Screens Inspection of Distributor/Wholesaler or Certified Reclaimer Manager Inspection Review Special Instructions for Error Correction Screen Entries Other Errors Caveats and Exceptions <i>G THE XML UPLOAD (Optional)</i> Where do the XML files come from?	
6.	5.2.1. 5.2.2. 5.2.3. 5.2.4. 5.2.5. 5.2.6. 5.3. 5.3.1. 5.3.2. 5.4. USIN 6.1. 6.2. 6.3.	Un-Registered Facilities Facility Screen Printing Pre-filled Facility Inspection Forms Inspection Screens Inspection of Distributor/Wholesaler or Certified Reclaimer Manager Inspection Review Special Instructions for Error Correction Screen Entries Other Errors Caveats and Exceptions <i>G THE XML UPLOAD (Optional)</i> Where do the XML files come from?	
6.	5.2.1. 5.2.2. 5.2.3. 5.2.4. 5.2.5. 5.2.6. 5.3. 5.3.1. 5.3.2. 5.4. USIN 6.1. 6.2. 5.2. 5.2. 6.3. 5.2. 5.2. 5.2. 5.2. 5.2. 5.2. 5.2. 5.2. 5.2. 5.2. 5.2. 5.2. 5.2. 5.2. 5.2. 5.2. 5.2. 5.2. 5.2. 5.2. 5.2. 5.2. 5.2. 5.2. 5.2. 5.2. 5.2. 5.2. 5.2. 5.2. 5.2. 5.2. 5.2. 5.2. 5.2. 5.2. 5.2. 5.2. 5.2. 5.2. 5.2. 5.2. 5.3. 5.3. 5.3. 5.3. 5.3. 5.3. 5.3. 5.3. 5.3. 5.3. 5.3. 5.3. 5.3. 5.3. 5.3. 5.3. 5.3. 5.3. 5.3. 5.3. 5.3. 5.3. 5.3. 5.3. 5.3. 5.3. 5.3. 5.3. 5.3. 5.3. 5.3. 5.3. 5.3. 5.3. 5.3. 5.3. 5.3. 5.3. 5.3. 5.3. 5.3. 5.3. 5.3. 5.3. 5.3. 5.3. 5.3. 5.3. 5.3. 5.3. 5.3. 5.3. 5.3. 5.3. 5.3. 5.3. 5.3. 5.3. 5.3. 5.3. 5.3. 5.3. 5.3. 5.3. 5.3. 5.3. 5.3. 5.3. 5.3. 5.3. 5.3. 5.3. 5.3. 5.3. 5.3. 5.3. 5.3. 5.3. 5.3. 5.3. 5.3. 5.3. 5.3. 5.3. 5.3. 5.3. 5.3. 5.3. 5.3. 5.3. 5.3. 5.3. 5.3. 5.3. 5.3. 5.3. 5.3. 5.3. 5.3. 5.3. 5.3. 5.3. 5.3. 5.3. 5.3. 5.3. 5.3. 5.3. 5.3. 5.3. 5.3. 5.3. 5.3. 5.3. 5.3. 5.3. 5.3. 5.3. 5.3. 5.3. 5.3. 5.3. 5.3. 5.3. 5.3. 5.3. 5.3. 5.3. 5.3. 5.3. 5.3. 5.3. 5.3. 5.3. 5.3. 5.3. 5.3. 5.3. 5.3. 5.3. 5.3. 5.3. 5.3. 5.3. 5.3. 5.3. 5.3. 5.3. 5.3. 5.3. 5.3. 5.3. 5.3. 5.3. 5.3. 5.3. 5.3. 5.3. 5.3. 5.3. 5.3. 5.3. 5.3. 5.3. 5.3. 5.3. 5.3. 5.3. 5.3. 5.3. 5.3. 5.3. 5.3. 5.3. 5.3. 5.3. 5.3. 5.3. 5.3. 5.3. 5.3. 5.3. 5.3. 5.3. 5.3. 5.3. 5.3. 5.3. 5.3. 5.3. 5.3. 5.3. 5.3. 5.3. 5.3. 5.3. 5.3. 5.3. 5.3. 5.3. 5.3. 5.3. 5.3. 5.3. 5.3. 5.3. 5.3. 5.3. 5.3. 5.3. 5.3. 5.3. 5.3. 5.3. 5.3. 5.3. 5.3. 5.3. 5.3. 5.3. 5.3. 5.3. 5.3. 5.3. 5.3. 5.3. 5.3. 5.3. 5.3. 5.3. 5.3. 5.3. 5.3. 5.3. 5.3. 5.3. 5.3. 5.3. 5.3. 5.3. 5.3. 5.3. 5.3. 5.3. 5.3. 5.3. 5.3. 5.3. 5.3. 5.3. 5.3. 5.3. 5.3. 5.3. 5.3. 5.3. 5.3. 5.3. 5.3. 5.3. 5.3. 5.3. 5.3. 5.3. 5.3. 5.3. 5.3. 5.3. 5.3. 5.3. 5.3. 5.3. 5.3. 5.3. 5.5. 5.5. 5.5. 5.5. 5.5. 5.5. 5.	Un-Registered Facilities Facility Screen	

1.0 GENERAL INFORMATION

1. GENERAL INFORMATION

1.1. Background

The California Global Warming Solutions Act of 2006 directs ARB to develop early actions as part of the State's efforts to reduce greenhouse gas (GHG) emissions to 1990 levels by 2020. ARB has identified proper implementation and management of Refrigerant Management Program (RMP) as one of the early actions to reduce greenhouse gas emission.

To meet the objective of the RMP requirement - ARB requires all company facilities, refrigerant distributors, wholesalers, and certified reclaimers subject to the regulation to be identified and registered. A software program has been developed by ARB to manage the process. This program is known as the Refrigerant Registration and Reporting Program, or "R3" for short.

The registration process will ensure that the requirements of the regulation are effectively communicated to the regulated community, records are collected and maintained, and fees that support the program are collected. Proper reporting will ensure that the best management practices are being followed in a manner to reduce refrigerant emissions. Objectives of this RMP-R3 solution are:

- Implement a scalable system to support ARB RMP registration, recordkeeping, reporting, and inspection functions;
- Meet ARB's goals of providing online customer self-service;
- Develop and implement a secure system that provides interface, data import, fee payment, and reporting functionality to facilitate seamless and transparent data sharing and reporting; and
- Implement an ARB RMP web-interface, which enables enforcement actions (inspections) and data sharing between regulatory agencies, ARB business units, and other external stakeholders.

1.2. System Overview

The Refrigerant Registration and Reporting (R3) solution is a web-based software program that is available to all users with Internet access and a computer device with an Internet browser. The R3 software program does not require a user to install anything other than a web browser on the user's computer system. User access to the R3 software program is provided over the public Internet from an Air Resources Board (ARB) computer server through the user's browser.

The R3 system is designed to support different sets of tasks for the different. Major functions performed are listed in groups, based on the type of organization accessing the R3 software. Usage of each section will be further detailed later. This is a roles based solution, so each user will have specific permissions based on the role they are assigned.

Tasks for Companies with Refrigeration Facilities

- Registration of company and initial Company Contact
- Facility registration and record maintenance
- Maintain Refrigeration System records
 - Enter Service Records
- Maintain Automatic Leak Detection System (ALD) records
- Annual Reporting
- Annual Fee Invoice generation
- Online Annual Fee Payment
- Company R3 user management

Tasks for Refrigerant Distribution, Wholesale and Certified Reclaimer Companies

- Registration of company and initial Company Contact
- Facility registration and record maintenance
- Annual Reporting
- Company R3 user management

Tasks for Air District users

- Air District R3 user management
- Manage Facility Inspection records
- View reports and data

Tasks for Air Resources Board users

- Tasks for RMP Program staff
 - User management for ARB and other R3 users
 - o Maintain Master Data used in R3
 - Manage R3 Announcements
 - View reports and data
- Tasks for ARB Enforcement staff
 - o Creation of initial Admin user for each Air District
 - Manage Facility Inspection records
 - View reports and data
- Tasks for ARB ASD (accounting) staff
 - Process Annual Fee payments sent to ARB
 - Reconcile all Annual Fee payments and receivables
 - View reports and data

Many of these tasks are common to different users with different roles. Depending on the user's role and organization the same task will provide a specific view of the R3 data. Company users access data related to their company and Air Districts access data associated to their Air District.

1.3. **Project References**

ARB RMP regulation:

Regulation for the Management of High Global Warming Potential Refrigerants for Stationary Sources

Note: The above referenced ARB regulation document can be found through links on the R3 program home page.

1.4. Authorized Use Permission

Certain implied agreements are inherent in using the R3 system. Those agreements include:

You agree not to use the system for any illegal purpose or activity, or to discuss or advocate any illegal activities, whether in private or in public. You agree not to do anything on this system that may damage the computer hardware, software, or data files, or the system's operation in any way.

You agree that no liability of any kind for any matters relating directly or indirectly to your use, or the use of anyone else, whether authorized or not, of this computer system, will impugn to the system operator, the ARB or anyone employed with the ARB or the State of California.

You agree to hold harmless and to indemnify the system operator, the ARB or the State of California or anyone employed with the ARB or the State of California from any action relating directly or indirectly to matters relating to this computer system.

In the State of California, laws exist to ensure that government is open and that the public has a right to access appropriate records and information possessed by State government. At the same time, there are exceptions to the public's right to access public records. These exceptions serve various needs including maintaining the privacy of individuals. Both State and federal laws provide exceptions.

All information collected at this site becomes public record that may be subject to inspection and copying by the public, unless an exemption in law exists. In the event of a conflict between this Use Policy and the Public Records Act, the Information Practices Act, or other law governing the disclosure of records, the Public Records Act, the Information Practices Act, or other applicable law will control.

The ARB does not place "cookies" on the computers of our users, except for session cookies used by the R3 application.

1.5. Points of Contact

For general R3 questions, Send an email to <u>reftrackinfo@arb.ca.gov</u> Help Desk phone: 916-324-2517

1.6. Acronyms and Abbreviations

AD	Air District
ARB	Air Resources Board
CARB	California Air Resources Board (CARB or ARB)
FAQ	Frequently Asked Questions
R3	Refrigerant Registration and Reporting

	(the software application)
RMP	Refrigerant Management Program

2.0 SYSTEM SUMMARY

2. SYSTEM SUMMARY

This section provides a general overview of the R3 system written in non-technical terminology. The summary outlines the uses of the system in supporting the activities of all users and ARB staff.

2.1. System Configuration

The R3 software application is a web based system that is available over the public Internet. The R3 software is hosted at State of California data centers, on ARB computer servers.



As shown above, the software has several external links; one is to a credit card payment gateway. Any online payments of fees associated with the RMP are done through this gateway. Use of the gateway for credit card transactions ensures that the R3 program does not directly process or retain any credit card information. Other external interfaces provide company information from the ARBER program and provide address validation/correction to US Post Office standards.

2.2. Data Flows

Data provided by users is stored in a database on the ARB servers. Most data is entered through data entry screens, although Companies with Refrigeration Facilities can upload batch data during initial registration and also prior to Annual Reporting that will reduce the amount of data entry required. All web data entry screens are designed for ease of use, with drop down lists whenever possible to make the process faster and more uniform.

2.3. User Access Levels

The R3 program supports different users and/or user groups, each with their own restrictions on what parts of the system can be accessed and what data can be viewed.

User Type	View Restriction
Company, Facility	Limited to company or facility information
Air District	Limited to Facilities and users in the Air District
ARB	Dependent on role – in many cases few restrictions
	(see below for more details)

Access to application tasks and menu choices are managed on the role level. The figure below illustrates the user roles found in the R3 application; the little people represent a role and the list next to them the available tasks.



2.4. Contingencies and Alternate Modes of Operation

The R3 system's main purpose is reporting, so it is not a business critical application. The key times of availability are between January 1 and March 1 of each year, because companies subject to RMP regulation must bring the information about the company and refrigerant usage up to date, file the annual report and pay any required annual fees.

ARB will make the R3 program available year round and all day (24/7/365) except during normal hours of maintenance. Normal maintenance is done outside of business hours and should not affect most users of the R3 system. Support for the application will be available during normal ARB business hours; support will not be 24/7/365.

3.0 GETTING STARTED

3. GETTING STARTED

All users enter the R3 site through the Welcome Page (shown below). This is the public page for the R3 program. From this page users of the R3 system log in to the system. The public can learn about the RMP program through a link to the ARB RMP Home Page; select from the top menu to access reports and forms; view a Frequently Asked Questions (FAQ) document; or view Help on the R3 system. From the menu external developers can test the batch XML process (more about this in a later section).

3.1. Registration for Companies

From the Welcome Page all Companies enter the process to begin their initial registration in the R3 program by clicking on the "Sign up for New Registration" link.





All company types subject to the regulation register in the R3 program in much the same way. To register the most important issue is that the correct person within the company performs the registration and becomes the primary contact person for the company. The company contact person will also be the first Company Admin, the top R3 program role in a company, the role that can create other users, including additional Company Admin users.

3.1.1. Process Steps for Complete Registration of Companies and Facilities

In the figures below the registration of Companies with Refrigeration Facilities is shown to have more steps than the registration process for Refrigerant Distributors, Wholesalers and Certified Reclaimers. The additional steps are required for the Refrigeration Systems within the Refrigeration Facilities.

3.0 Getting Started



Below is the first screen the user will see when starting registration for any type of company subject to the RMP regulation. On the first company registration page the user must select type of company that is being registered from these choices:

- Company with Refrigeration Facilities
- Refrigerant Distributors and Wholesalers
- Refrigerant Certified Reclaimers

Next the user enters the company Employer Identification Number (EIN), also known as the Federal Employer Identification Number (FEIN). This number is used in tax filings and is public information. If you do not know this number contact the people in your company that report taxes for the company or the employees (HR Dept), they will have this nine (9) digit EIN number.

California Environmental Protection Agency		ARB RMP Home Page				S.C.	
GOV	R3 Home	Reports & Forms	Contact FAQ	Test Your XML	Help		EMS.
New Reg	istration- Reg	jistrant Identifio	cation				
	Registra	• nt Identification	Company Registra	tion Registrat	on Confirmation	O Registration Complete	Help for this Page
Туре	Of Ownership : *	- Choose your of	wnership type	. 0		r : * "Format for Federal Tax ID (FEIN or El (Do NOT use a social security number not have a tax number.)	
	Back to Top All ARB Contacts A-Z Index						

On many of the screens you will see an icon of a little question mark inside a blue circle. Clicking your mouse on this icon will open up the Help Page for the current screen. Your will find more information on this feature in the Help Page section.

nA	California Environmental Protection Agency	ARB RMP	Home Page		20
Gov.	R3 Home Reports & Forms	Contact FAQ Test Your XML	Help		ANS.
New Reg	jistration- Registrant Identifi	ication			
	Registrant Identification	Company Registration Registra	tion Confirmation	Registration Complete	Help for this Page
Туре	Of Ownership : * Company with re	efrigeration facility 🔹 👔	(Do N	994499449 hat for Federal Tax ID (FEIN or EIN) IOT use a social security number. Ive a tax number.)	
More th	nan one facility will register for s	same EIN?			◎ Yes ◯ No
refrigeratio	n systems are registered under the	tration is to create an overall compa overall company. At the current st overall company name. Select yes if	p of the registration	process the R3 is asking if	the company will have
Are you	authorized to register as comp	any?			O Yes O No
		ompany to create the overall compa rd has already been created by som		R3 administrator select yes.	If someone else is the
		Cancel			
		Back to Top All ARB Cor	tacts <u>A-Z Index</u>		

The next page of registration asks two critical questions. The first question is to determine if more than a single facility will be registered to this company. A facility is a physical location, with a unique street address. Single or multiple facilities can be registered to a company.

The next question is to determine if the person attempting to register the company is the correct person to become the primary company contact person.

to	Air Resources Board	RIR
.007	Home Reports & Forms Contact FAQ Test Your XML Help	
<u>me</u> >> Reg	on	
lew Regis	on- Company Registration	Page
-		
	Registrant Identification Company Registration Registration Confirmation Registration Complete	
	Fields marked with * are mandator	y to fill.
Salu	: * Mr → First Name : * Last Name : *	
Verify	:*	
User (Minimum 6 c		
Hint Que	1: * What is your mothers maiden name Hint Question 2: * In what city was your father born?	•
Hint An	1: * Hint Answer 2: *	

The first portion	of company	registration	(above) is	the user	profile	of the j	primary	contact j	person f	or
the company.										

Company Name : *			EIN : * ******994
Contact Person Infor	mation		
Salutation : Position : Email : *		First Name : *	Last Name : *
Mailing Address Infor	mation		
Street Address 1 : * Street Address 2 : City : *		State : * Please Select •	Zip : *
Billing Address Inform	nation 🕜		
 Billing address Street Address 1: * Street Address 2 : City : * 	is same as mailing address.	State : * Please Select •	Zip : *
Payment Responsibi	lity (if applicable) 🕜		
Who is responsible	for making payments? © C	Company	
		<< Back Next >> Cancel	

The second portion of the company registration form gathers data on the company, name and addresses. The information for the primary contact person is also entered here.

3.1.2. Payment Responsibility

Included in the company information (and relevant only to companies that must pay annual fees) is the question "Who is responsible for making payments?" Selecting Company will allow all facility fee to be paid by the company. Selecting Facility allows selection of payment responsibility to be done in each Facility record. Each Facility can then select either Company or Facility to be responsible for the fee.

3.1.3. Completing Company Registration

Once all information is entered on the registration page the user clicks on the "Next" button. If the program detects any errors or missing values the user will see error messages at the top of the screen and can correct the information. Once there are no errors to correct the user will go to the final registration page where the data can be reviewed and the user certifies that the information entered is accurate and correct. An email notification will be sent to the Company Contact email address confirming registration.

On completion of registration the user will be taken to the user's Home page, which is the same web page that a user lands on after logging in to the R3 program. Automatically the new Company Admin is automatically logged in and placed in their Home page, ready to continue with tasks to complete the entry of company facility information.

After the initial registration is complete Companies with Facilities must enter data on the Facilities, Refrigeration Systems and Automatic Leak Detection (ALD) systems located in California.

Refrigerant Distributors, Wholesalers and Certified Reclaimers must enter address and contact person information for all Facilities located in California. Information on adding and maintaining facility information is covered in later sections of this manual.

Note: Facility, Refrigeration Systems and ALD system information may also be entered in batch through the optional XML upload process. This process of batch upload is useful for companies with many facilities to register. Users of 3rd party RMS software may have an option to create the special XML batch file required. See Section 6 below for information on this XML batch upload process.

3.2. Logging On

Users of the R3 system must login to the system to gain access to most of the system functions. In most cases new users are provided with access by someone else in their organization.

Organization	Who to ask for access if you don't have a login ID			
Company or Facility	Your Company and/or Facility Admin			
Air District	ARB for initial Admin – then AD Admin			
ARB	ARB Admin			

The first person who registers a company in R3 becomes the contact person for that company. This person is the initial Company Admin and creates additional users for the company. As each user is created an email is sent to the new R3 user. This email provides the information a new user requires to log on the first time.

The new user email provides their user login name and an initial password. On first login the user will be taken to a profile page for selection of a new password and selection of two hint questions for assisting in forgotten passwords in the future.

P		esources Board	ARB RN	1P Home Page		Edit Profile Logout	Se .	
U.	GOV R3 Home	Registration Annual	Reporting Payments	Reports Inspection			ALLS.	
Home	l <mark>e</mark> ≥ Edit Profile					Logged in as: Fre {Com {Wood Valley (npany Admin}	
						Click here to chan	ge your pa	ssword
Maintain yo	our email addre	SS			I			
	User Profile					Change Pas	sword	
	Salutation: Email:*	Mr	First Name : * Fre	ed	Las	t Name : * Rodgers		
	Verify Email : *	frodgers@vwcs.com				elephone :* 5305551212 -		
	Hint Answer 1: *		len name 💌		what city w oodland	vas your father born?		
	opt out of notification					ect your hint questio	ns and pro	ovide
Check to Opt (not recomme	out of email no ended)	otifications	Update	Cancel	ans	swers		
User'	's Manual			(Click h	ere save changes P	age 14	

3.3. Home Page

Following a successful log-in all users land on their Home Page. Each user's home page is custom for their user role in the R3 program. Key features of the Home page are shown below.

			User I	Profile Upda	ite	Lo	ogout o	of program	
Ø Air Res	ntal Protection Agency Durces Board Registration Annual Reporting		1P Home Pag Reports Insp		Edit Profile	Loqout	- /		
nu			Use	r Informatio	n 🥕 🗍	ed in as: Fred Rodg (Company Adi Vood Valley Cold Stor	min}		
Registrations are due by	March 1, 2012 for all facilities v	with 2000 lb or I	larger systems.	, as well as all Distr	ibutors/Wholesale	ers/Reclaimers.		R3 Annour	cements
Welcome "Fred	Rodgers" to Refrige	rant Mana	gement P	odram					
	Rougers to Reinge		gement Fi	ogram					
Quick Links	Welcome to Company Ad	the Refrigerant Imin type user.	Registration ar The guick links	nd Reporting System on the left side of this	n (R3). You are le s page show activit	ogged in as a ies available for			
<u>Manage Users</u> <u>Manage Facility</u>	users of your above.	role type. Selec	t an activity fron	n the quick links or fr	om the menus on	the red tab bar			
File Annual Report	d Quick Links	to most i	used func	tions				_	
	Zuich Linns	to most t	useu rune	lions	Metrics a	and Status	Bar		
Make Payments Reports					withing a	inu Status			
<u>Make Payments</u>				~	wiethes a			-	
<u>Make Payments</u>	Refrigeration Systems	ALD	Service Record	Annual Report	Payment	Inspection		-	
Make Payments Reports		ALD 1		Annual Report Pending Pending				-	

3.4. Main Menu

3.4.1. Companies Menus

Company users can access program tasks using the Main Menu or the Quick Links on their Home Page. Each Main Menu item and the associated tasks are listed below.

3.4.1.1. R3 Home

Menu Sub Task	Description
User Dashboard	R3 User Home Page
FAQ	Frequently Asked Questions
Reports and Forms	Public Reports and Forms
RMP Regulation	Link to the RMP Regulation
Contacts	ARB contact information

3.4.1.2. Registration

Menu Sub Task	Description
User Management	Add and Maintain Users (Admin function)
Company	Maintain Company Profile (Admin function)
Management	
Facility	Maintain Facility data
Batch Upload	Import batch XML file
Change of Ownership	Report Sale of a Facility (Admin function)

3.4.1.3. Annual Reporting

Menu Sub Task	Description
Servicing	Add and Maintain Refrigeration System Service
	Records
Batch Upload	Import batch XML file
File Report	File Facility Annual Reports

3.4.1.4. Payments

Menu Sub Task	Description
Make Payments	Generate Invoices and make Online Payments –
	Used after filing Annual Reports

3.4.1.5. Reports

This Main Menu item opens a reporting window where reports are available for viewing and printing. The list of reports that can be accessed varies with the role of the user.

3.4.1.6. Inspections

LOGIN

Login Can1Access my Account? Companies with facilities with refrigeration systems, distributors, whole sealers, and redaimers must first setup a user account and company profile in order to use R3. Sign Up for New Registration

(case-sensitive)

USERNAME :

PASSWORD :

Menu Sub Task	Description
Inspections for	Allows viewing of Air District or ARB
(type of company)	Inspection of the company's facilities

3.5. Recovering Forgotten Username or Password

System (R3)

web-based tool for erant Management simatted reports of with an internet

using more than 50 reduce emissions r and servicing of

page of the RMP. nt contacts for the Users who have forgotten their Username or Password can recover them from the Welcome page. First click on the "Can't Access My Account" link.

_	Can't Access My Account" link		
	From there select either "Forgot Password	" or	"Forgot U

From there select either "Forgot Password" or "Forgot Username". Enter the requested information to recover the required lost item.

3.6. Changing User Profile and Password

Users can update their profile and change their password at any time by logging in to the program and then select "Edit Profile" from the top right Home Screen. The R3 system provides an automatically generated temporary password when a new user is created; that password will need to be updated with a permanent password the first time that user logs in to the system.

		•			U	~				
	ΛA.		mental Protection Ag sources Boa		ARB R	MP Hom	e Page		Edit Profile Logout	
	U.GOV	R3 Home	Registration	Annual Reporting	Payments	Reports	Inspection	ı	Mrs.	
ł	Home > Edit Pro	ofile							Logged in as: Fred Rodgers {Company Admin} {Wood Valley Cold Storage}	
Maintair	n your em	ail addre	ss						Click here to change your pas	sword
	User Pi	ofile							Change Password	
	Ŕ		Mr rodgers@wv.co rodgers@wv∤co	m	t Name : * F	red			ast Name : * Rodgers	
		-		thers maiden name	•	Hint Qu	estion 2: * [(Format)	/ was your father born?	
	Hint	Answer 1: *	Smithson	ners maiden name				Woodland		
Check to C	<u></u>	email no			Update	Cancel			elect your hint questions and provisivers	vide
(not recom				Back to To	op <u>All ARE</u>	<u>8 Contacts</u>	<u>A-Z Inde</u>	×		
104		Due Cle D								
E 1	gure 3: Th	e rrofile Pa	age				Ì	Click l	here save changes	

3.7. Managing Users

Users are added, edited or deleted by Admin level users through the Manage Users screens. The Manage Users screens are accessed from either the Registration Menu tab or through Quick Links on the user Home Page (User Scoreboard).

	Ø Air Res	Registration Agency Registration		P Home Page Reports Inspection Admin	Edit Profile Logout	RR	
Select User	Home>Users				Logged in as: Bob R (ARB	odgers I Admin}	Search for User Name
	Se User Listing	arch:			Help for this Pa		User Status • New
	User ID load.test	First Name Test	Last Name Test	Role Type Company Admin	Status Phone	-	Active
Buttons to Add New Users, Delete User,	 loadtest.user1 magen.holloway 	nidhi Magen	sachdeva Holloway	Company Admin Air District Admin Distributor/Wholesaler	 3214569874 4157494785 		Inactive
Activate or Deactivate User	mbeatty mbeatty1 « Previous	Maureen Maureen	Beatty Beatty <u>6 7 8 9 10</u>	Ad Reclaimer Admin	 2156028233 555555555 	* xt *)	Multiple Pages Bar
User's Manual	Add User Delete		Elivate		μι		Use Previous and Next links to move among multiple pages of users

As each new user is added to the system the status for that user is set to "New" until the user logs in to the R3 system to complete their user profile and change their password (see User Profile" above). The possible User Status states are summarized below:

Status	Description
New	User has been added, but has not yet updated Profile or Password
Active	Normal status for User using the R3 System
Inactive	User who has been locked out of R3 System be Administrator, but not deleted
Deleted	User has been permanently removed from the R3 System
	Please be cautious with all deletions, once deleted a user cannot be recalled or
	reinstated.

3.8. Adding New User

Adding a new user is a task for Admin level users. Each type of Admin role sees only the user types related to their role. The Screen below shows the Add New User screen for an ARB Admin role. All roles are shown in the Role Type list for the new user.

Home > Users				Logger Help for this	d in as: Bob Rodgers (ABB Admin) Page
	Add New User Salutation : * First Name : * Phone :* (Format XXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXX		Last Name : * Email : *		The new user will receive an email notification containing information on User Name, Role,
	Username : * (Minimum 6 characters)	Please select role Please select role ARB Admin ARB Student ARB Student ARB Accounting ARB Inspector Admin ARB Inspector Air District Admin Air District Staff Air District Inspector Company Admin Company Staff Facility Atmin Facility Staff	Password : * enerate Password to create the new initial password.	Pa cr pa	Temporary Password and R3 URL to login. se the "Generate assword" button to eate a temporary assword for the new ser.
		Service Personnel Distributor/Wholesaler Admin Reclaimer Admin	All ARB Contacts A-Z Index		

3.9. Exit System - Logout

To exit the system - click the mouse on the "Logout" link in the upper right of most of the screens.

Warning: If you exit the system without saving your work while in a data entry screen then the data will not be saved.

3.9.1. Automatic Logout – Session Timeout

The R3 system automatically times out a user's session if the R3 system detects no activity for a period of time. If the user's browser has not been closed, in many cases the system will restore a user to the activity they were last in, when the user logs back in to the R3 system.

4.0 USING THE R3 SYSTEM

4. USING THE RMP-R3 APPLICATION - COMPANIES

4.1. Add and Manage Facilities

All companies must enter and maintain information on their facilities in California. The function can be accesses from the Main Menu in the Registration tab or from the "Manage Facility" quick link on the user Home Page.

Air Resources Board R3 Home Registration / 2 > Facilities	Annual Reporting Paymen	ts Reports Inspection		in as: Fred Rodgers (Company Admin) od Valley Cold Storage)	
Search by Facility Name:		Advanced		elp for this Page <u>Reset Search</u>	
Facility Listing			2 Re	ecord(s) Found	
Facility Name	Address	City	Refrigeration Sys	ALD Status	
Wood Valley 2	300 Railroad St,	Woodland	0 (<u>Add</u>)	0 (<u>Add</u>) 🥑	
Wood Valley Cold Storage	200 Railroad St,	Woodland	2 (<u>Add</u>)	1 (<u>Add</u>)	Statistics on Refrigeration System and ALD at Facility with Quick Links
Add New Delete				Next »	to add new
	Back to Top All A	RB Contacts A-Z Index			

Figure 4 - Manage Facility screen

In the example shown the company has already added two facilities. From this screen the user can add a new facility; view and edit one of the already entered facilities; or delete one or more of these facilities. There are also statistics on Refrigeration Systems and Automatic Leak Detection (ALD) systems at existing facilities, with Quick Links to add new systems.

Details of these functions are described in the following sections.

4.1.1. Add New Facility

All companies must enter their California facilities. Clicking on the "Add New" button opens the add facility screen.

		Help fo	or this Page
	New Facility Details		
	Company Name : * Wood Valley Cold Storage		Need Help with this screen?
	Facility Name : *		Click here
	Facility Contact Person Information		
2	Facility contact person is same as company contact person.		
	Salutation : * Mr	Last Name : *	
Click here to	Position : Phone : *		
use information already entered	Email : *		
uncady chiered	Mailing Address Information		
	Facility mailing address is same as company mailing address.		
N	Street Address 1 : *		
N I	Street Address 2 :		
	City:* State:* CA -	Zip:*	
	Location Address Information		
	Facility Location address is same as facility mailing address.		
	Street Address 1 : *		
	Street Address 2 :		
	City : * CA -	Zip : *	
	Who is responsible for payment? Company Facility 		
	Business Codes (Please click Browse button to select your company NAICS and SIC codes)		
	NAICS Code : * Browse 3 SIC Code : *	Browse	

Most of the information required about a facility is self-explanatory; contact information for the onsite person, with a checkbox if this is the same person as the primary company contact entered at time of company registration. Facility mailing address and the street address of the location is also required, each has a check box to auto fill the fields with Company information, if appropriate.

Responsibility for Annual Fee payment (required of facilities with large systems starting in 2012 or medium systems starting in 2014) is a facility level decision if the company profile makes this a facility by facility decision.

NAICS and SIC codes are industry codes for the type of facility. Click the browse button to search for the appropriate codes either directly using the code number or by the code description.





Take for other Easility actions

4.1.2. Delete One or More Facilities

To delete one or more facilities select the facility by checking the small box next to the facility name and then click the Delete button. The user will be asked to confirm the decision to delete.

Please be cautious with all deletions, once deleted a facility cannot be recalled or reinstated.

4.1.3. View or Edit Existing Facility

Clicking on an existing facility link opens the facility screen below.

Facility Information R	efrigeration System	ALD System	Service Record	File Annual Repor		1000	or other Facility a	
Edit Facility Details	s						Edit Info	
Company Name : *	Wood Valley Cold S	torage						
Facility Name : *	Wood Valley Cold S	torage					Edit Info buttor	
Air District :	SACRAMENTO ME	TROPOLITAN AQM	D					'
Type of ownership :	Company with refrige	eration facility						_
Contact Person Infor	mation							
Facility contact period	erson is same as comp	any contact person.						
Salutation : *	Mr	→ First Na	me:* Fredrick		Last Name : *	Rodaers		

This screen is the primary screen for most activities related to facilities. From this screen the facility data is maintained using the "Edit Info" button at the right in the "Edit Facility Details" bar. Some user roles do not have rights to edit the facility information, so the "Edit Info" button will not be active.

This screen displays other tabs with the Facility Information tab, giving access to other key actions for the selected facility.

4.1.4. Maintain Refrigeration Systems

Each Facility with Refrigeration Systems enters and maintains the data about these systems through this



screen. The example below shows selection of this tab for a facility with two Refrigeration Systems already entered.

4.1.5. Delete One or More Refrigeration Systems

To delete one or more Refrigeration Systems select the system by checking the small box next to the Refrigeration System name and then click the Delete button. The user will be asked to confirm the decision to delete.

Please be cautious with all deletions, once deleted a system cannot be recalled or reinstated.

4.1.6. Add, View or Edit Refrigeration System

From this screen the user can add a new Refrigeration System or view and edit one of the already entered

Add New Refrigeration System			Edit Refrigeration System		
Refrigeration System ID : *	3		Refrigeration System ID : *	Freezer 1A	3
Installation Date :			Installation Date :	05/24/2007	
Model Year : *	Please Select 👻		Model Year: *	2007	•
Manufacturer : *	Please Select 👻		Manufacturer: *	ACME	•
Model or Description : *		100	Model or Description : *	Bulldog	•
Equipment Type : *	Please Select 👻		Equipment Type : *	Freezer	-
Serial Number : *	3	ea	Serial Number : *	400423A	0
Location - Description : *			Location - Description : *	Back wall	
Attach floor plan :	Browse_		Attach floor plan : Supported files to upload " jpg, jpeg, png		irowse?
Supported files to upload " jpg, jpeg, png Temperature Class : *	<u> </u>		Temperature Class : *		- ()
Operational :			Operational :	Normal Operation	- 0
Refrigerant Full Charge Amount : *	Please Select	<u>0</u>	Refrigerant Full Charge Amount : *	2025.00	pounds 🕐
Refrigerant Type : *	Please Select	×	Refrigerant Type : *		•
Means By Which Charge : Amount Determined	Please Select		Means By Which Charge : Amount Determined	Please Select	•
Save & Submit Save & Add more	e Cancel	ite	Update Cancel		

Figure 6 – Add or Edit Refrigeration System

Systems. Details of adding/editing a Refrigeration System is shown above. For help on this page click on the "Help for this Page" button or the blue circle/question mark icons.

4.1.7. Maintain Automatic Leak Detection Systems (ALD)

Each Facility with Automatic Leak Detection systems enters and maintains the data about these systems through this screen. The example below shows selection of this tab for a facility with an Automatic Leak Detection System already entered.

0A	California Environmenta	al Protection Agency	ARB RMP Hor	ne Page	Edit Profile Logout	2
Gov	R3 Home Re	egistration Annual Repor	ting Payments Report	s Inspection		ALLS.
<u>Home</u> > <u>Facili</u>	¥ > Wood Valley Cold	Storage			Logged in as: Fr {Cor {Wood Valley	mpany Admin}
Facility Info	rmation Refrigera	tion System ALD System Search:	<u>Service Record</u>	File Annual Report	Q Search	
Leak	Detection System:	s			1 Record(s) I	Found
📃 Equ	ipment ID	Equipment Type	Sensor Type	Number of Sensors	Manufacturer	
	1	Concentration Monito.	Infra red	2	ACME	
(« Previou	5					Next »)
Add	New Delete					
		<u>Back</u>	to Top All ARB Contact	<u>ts</u> <u>A-Z Index</u>		

4.1.8. Delete One or More Automatic Leak Detection Systems (ALD)

To delete one or more Automatic Leak Detection Systems select the system by checking the small box next to the ALD System name and then click the Delete button. The user will be asked to confirm the decision to delete.

Please be cautious with all deletions, once deleted a system cannot be recalled or reinstated.

4.1.9. Add, View or Edit Automatic Leak Detection System

From this screen the user can add a new Automatic Leak Detection System or view and edit one that has already been entered. Automatic Leak Detection Systems must be associated to one or more Refrigeration Systems at the facility. In the Refrigeration System box highlight the Refrigeration System(s) this ALD monitors as shown in the box to the right below.

dd New Leak Detection Equip	ment(If Applicable)		Edit Leak Detection System(I	f Applicable)	
ALD System ID : *			ALD System ID :	* ALD 1	1
Installation Date :			Installation Date	11/12/2009	
Manufacturer :	Please Select	•	Manufacturer	Please Select	
System Type :	Please Select	-	System Type	Concentration Monitor (Direct System)	
Detection Limit :		i II	Detection Limit		1
Alarm Set Point :	100	i	Alarm Set Point	100	1
Concentration Monitor Type :	Please Select	-	Concentration Monitor Type	Please Select	1
ncentration Monitor Manufacturer :			Concentration Monitor Manufacture	Acme	1
Number of Sensors :			Number of Sensors	2]
Sensor Type :	Please Select	-	Sensor Type	Infra red -	
Sensor Manufacturer :		i	Sensor Manufacturer	Acme	1
Location of Sensors/Inlets :		i II.	Location of Sensors/Inlets	top	1
Refrigeration System : *	Freezer 1A Small Freezer		Refrigeration System :	* Freezer 1A Small Freezer	
		r		-	
ve & Submit Save & Add more	Cancel		Update Cancel		
	III			III	

Figure 7 - Add or Edit ALD

4.1.10. Add or Edit Service Records

Every Refrigeration Service event should be entered into the R3 application prior to filing the Annual Report for the facility. Service records include all inspections and repairs, scheduled or unscheduled. Service records can be entered all year long or uploaded in batch using the XML import process.

n4		Environmental Protection Agen		ARB RMP Hor	ne Page	Edit Profile Logout	50
U.GOV	R3 H	ome Registration	Annual Reporting	Payments Report	s Inspection		Els.
<u>Home</u> > Ea	<u>acility</u> > Wood	Valley Cold Storage				Logged in as: Fn {Con {Wood Valley	npany Admin}
Facility	Information	Refrigeration System	ALD System	Service Record	File Annual Report		
Re	frigeration	System Servicing				1 Record(s) F	ound
	Service Date	Facility	/ Name	Refrigeration ID	Refrigeration Type	Leaks Detected	
	11/20/2011	Wood \	'alley Cold Sto	Freezer 1A	R-225cb	No	
(« Pre	vious Add New	Delete					Next »
			Back to T	op All ARB Contact	<u>s A-Z Index</u>		

Service Records can be entered by most of the Company and Facility user roles, a special role for 3rd party service staff can be established. The only task this special role can perform is to enter service records. Keeping current throughout the year with entry of service records as the service events occur reduces the effort needed to file Annual Reports each spring.

Refrigeration System : * Type of service : *	Wood Valley Cold Storage Please Select Annual leak inspection	Help	for this Page	
Leaks detected : * Refingerant : * Net refrigerant amount : * Leak detection method : * Purpose of added or removed charge : Extra time for retrofitiretiment : plan needed	C Added Removed Not Charged ? pounds ? Please select		t • [Select the Refrigeration System hat received service Date of the Service What Type of Service
Additional notes : Save & Submt Cancel	Back to Top All ARB Contacts A.Z Ind	.i.		

If the answer to "Leaks Detected" is "Yes" then a new section opens. The Leak Repair section opens and requires additional data entry as seen below.

Cause of refrigerant leak: *	Compressor - Body or Terminal 👻	
Date leak repaired : *		
Days to repair : *	Days	
Initial verification test date : *		
Follow-up verification test date :		
Description of leak repair: *	v	
	() (h.	
Technician Name : *	@	
Technician certificate number : *		
Technician certificate type : *	@	
Additional notes :		

Note: Service Records may also be entered in batch through the optional XML upload process. This process of batch upload is useful for companies with many facilities or facilities with many service records. Users of 3rd party RMS software may have an option to create the special XML batch file required. See Section 6 below for information on this XML batch upload process.

4.2. Enter or File Annual Report

Most but not all facilities must file an Annual Report and pay Annual Fees. If you are not certain about your company responsibility, please review the ARB RMP Regulation, the ARB RMP web site or contact the ARB RMP staff. Links to this information is found on the R3 Welcome page.

4.2.1. Phase-in Schedule for Annual Reports and Fees

Every year facilities must file Annual Reports and pay Annual Fees per the phase-in schedule shown



below.

4.2.2. Annual Report for Company with Refrigeration Facilities

The R3 program allows easy filing of the Annual Report for each facility required to file.



The Annual Report records information on the Company, the Facility, the Refrigeration Systems at the facility, ALD systems and all Service Records for the Refrigeration Systems. It is a good idea to complete each of the verifications shown below prior to beginning the Annual Report process. Or select the verification links to be taken to the profile screens, which takes the user out of the Annual Report process and to the requested verification. Once the verifications are completed check off each verification box on the Annual Report screen to attest that this task has been completed. To the left is the set of steps for filing an Annual Report. These tasks are all supported

> The steps shown are for Companies with Refrigeration Facilities. Refrigerant Distributors/Wholesalers/Certified

by the Annual Reporting screen.

Reclaimers skip the Refrigeration Systems, ALD and Service Record reviews. Their reporting on

Refrigerant Amounts is different from Companies with Refrigeration Facilities as well. When in doubt on what reporting is required please refer to the Help Screens or the regulation for the actual requirements.

A review of all the records is required, with updates to the information where it is out of date.

ARB RMP Home Page Control Arr Resources Board R3 Home Registration Annual Reporting Payments Reports Inspection Home > Facility > Wood Valley Cold Storage	Edit Profile Logout Decision Logged in as: Fred Rodgers (Company Admin) (Vidod Valley Cold Storage)	Start by selecting the calendar year to work with. The facility name and filing status is shown on the selection screen. Selecting the calendar year
Facility information Refrigeration System ALD System Service Record File Annual	Report	the Annual Report is for will open the Annual Report Screen shown below.
	Help for this Page	
Annual Report Listing For "Wood Valley Cold Storage"		
Year Facility Name Date of Filing 2010 Wood Valley Cold Storage 2011 2011 Wood Valley Cold Storage 2011	Status Pending Pending	
Back to Top All ARB_Contacts A.Z.Inde	×	
Facility information Refrigeration System ALD System Service Record File Annual File Reports For "Wood Valley Cold Storage" Year Of Filing : 2011 -	Report	At the bottom of the screen are rows for all refrigerant entries, there is a
Did you own this facility on Jan 01 of Year of filing Yes No Date of ownership :	your certification that it is correct.	row for each refrigerant used in the facility.
✓ Verify Campany Information ✓ Verify Facility Information ✓ Verify Refrigeration System Information ✓ Verify Automatic Leak Detection System Information (if applicable) ✓ Verify Servicing & Leak Repair Information	Verify all information is c This should be done befor Report	-
Refrigerant Purchase and Use Information 🕜		
Type Total Purchased (lbs.)* Total Charged (lbs.)* Total Recovered (lbs.)* R-225cb R-32 File	Total Stored (lbs.)* Total Shipped (lbs.) for Reclamation or Destruction*	Complete for all Refrigerant Types used at facility
<- Back Save Review & Submt Cancel		

Once all information has been verified and checked off and all refrigerant data has been entered the Annual Report process is finished. Click on "Review & Submit" to verify and submit the Annual Report. Not all users have the role authority to submit the Annual Report to ARB. A Company or Facility Admin may prepare and submit the Annual Report. Other Company or Facility staff can prepare the report for submission, but do not have the final submission authority.

An email notification will be sent by the R3 system when the Annual Report is submitted to ARB.

4.2.3. Annual Reports for Distributors/Wholesalers and Reclaimers

Distributors/Wholesalers and Reclaimers must file Annual Reports, but pay no fees. The annual report is tailored to the Company business type. Distributors/Wholesalers/Certified Reclaimers must enter all refrigerant types processed in their facilities over the year.

The process starts with selecting "File Report for Distributor and Reclaimer" from the "Annual Report" tab of the Main Menu. The selection screen will come up as shown below. The screen will show all companies that the user is associated with. To show the options for this manual many companies are shown on this example screen with all the options. Your screen will probably show only one company.

GOVR	Air Resources Board 3 Home Registration Annual Report ort > File Report For Distributor and Reclaim Search:	ARB RMP Home Page rting Payments Reports Inspection er	Logs and a Re Wholesa	y that is Distributor/Wholesaler claimer – must file both a ler/Distributor Annual Report claimer Annual Reports orts)
File Report	For Distributor and Reclaimer		25 Record(s) Found	
Company Id#	Company	Туре	File Report	
ACM001	Acme Reclaimers	Refrigerant Reclaimer	File as: Distributor Reclaimer	
ACM001	Acme Reclaimers	Refrigerant Reclaimer	File as: <u>Distributor</u> <u>Reclaimer</u> ■	
ACO001	Acoms ':R Us	Refrigerant Reclaimer	File as: Distributor Reclaimer	
<u>CA 001</u>	CA Dept. of Education - NSD - FDP	Refrigerant Distributor/Wholesaler	File Report	
CHU001	Chuzzlewit Distributors	Refrigerant Distributor/Wholesaler	File as: <u>Distributor</u> <u>Reclaimer</u>	
<u>COO001</u>	Cookie Maker Incorporated	Refrigerant Reclaimer	File Report	
DEC002	dec12cpydist	Refrigerant Distributor/Wholesaler	File Report	Company that files
DEC002	dec12cpydist	Refrigerant Distributor/Wholesaler	File Report -	one Annual Report
		1 2	Next »)	one i minum Report

Click on "File Report" or select one of the "File as…" options to begin the Annual Report process. A screen to select the year to report on in the Annual Report, this is usually the previous calendar year.

			He	ip tòr this Page				
Annual Report Listing For "Chuzzlewit Distributors"								
Year	Facility Name	Date of Filing	Status					
<u>2011</u>	Chuzzlewit Distributors		Pending					
Select the year to open the Annual Report screen shown below. The example screen is for Distributor/Wholesaler reporting. The Annual Report screen for a Reclaimer is almost the same, but has different Refrigerant information data entries.

0A	California Environmental Protection Ag	ard ARB RM	MP Home Page	Edit Profile Logo	ut So
Gov	R3 Home Registration	Annual Reporting Payments	Reports Inspection A	dmin	W S
<u>Home</u> > <u>Annua</u>	al Report > As Distributor				n as: ARB Admin {ARB Admin}
				{Chu	zzlewit Distributors}
File Rep	orts For "Chuzzlewit Distrib	utors"			
Year Of Fili	ng: 2011 -				
Use the foll	owing links to be sure the data	being submitted is correct. A check	in each check box is your ce	ertification that it is correct.	
	Company Information	Verify Comp	any & Facility	profiles are correc	ct
		5 1	5 5	1	
		**Please s	ave the report once again aft	**Only decimal value is accept er deleting the refrigerant purchase	
Refriger	ant Purchase and Use Infor		, č		
Туре		Total Purchased (lbs.)*	Total Sold (lbs.)*	Total Shipped (lbs.) to Certified Reclaimer*	Delete
R-123	▼				×
Add Rows	^{s: ±} ←	Add row for each re	efrigerant distri	buted in California	a
			File An	nual Report	
<< Back	Save Review & S	ubmit Cancel			

The steps to complete the Annual Report are:

- Verify that the Company profile information is correct and up-to-date;
- Verify that the Facility profile information is correct and up-to-date; and
- Add rows and values for each Refrigerant Type distributed or reclaimed in California by the company.

Select the verification links to be taken to the profile screens. Once the verifications are completed check off each verification box on the Annual Report screen to attest that this task has been completed.

Once all information has been verified and checked off and all refrigerant data has been entered the Annual Report process is finished. Click on "Review & Submit" to verify and submit the Annual Report.

An email notification will be sent by the R3 system when the Annual Report is submitted to ARB.

4.2.4. Annual Fee Payments

As shown in the chart above, all Facilities with Large (2,000 lbs. charge and up) Refrigeration Systems start to pay Annual Fees in 2012. All Facilities with Medium Refrigeration Systems (200 lbs. up to 2,000 lbs. as the biggest system at the facility) start to pay Annual Fees in 2014. Refrigerant Distributors/Wholesalers/Certified Reclaimers and Facilities with systems that are only below 200 lbs. total charge do not pay fees.

Facilities that pay the Annual Fee must first have completed the filing of the Facility Annual Report. Please Note: **The payment process cannot be started until the Facility Annual Report is submitted to ARB**.



The payment process shown above is user role dependent, not all company users can process payments. After selecting the facility or facilities and validation that the Annual Reports are filed the R3 system will prepare an invoice.

A quick word about the invoicing process, at the Company Profile level the company can elect to pay fees for all facilities registered under that company. This could be one or more facilities on the same invoice. This choice is shifted to the Facility Profile if the Company Profile was set to check payment responsibility facility by facility. When set at Company Profile to Facility each Facility record is then looked at by the program to see how that facility will invoice. At the facility level the choices are to push the payment back up to the company level or make payment for that facility individually. This choice can be adjusted right up to the point of invoice generation.

Below is an example Home Screen for a company with two facilities. The scoreboard shows that there are two facilities registered under this company. Annual Reports are shown as "Pending" for both of these facilities, which indicates that Annual Reports have not yet been filed with ARB.

	• <u>Reports</u>						
_	1						
#	Facility	Refrigeration Systems	ALD	Service Record	Annual Report	Payment	Inspectio
1.	Wood Valley Cold Storage	2	1	1	Pending	Unpaid	0
2.	Wood Valley 2	1	0	0	Pending	Unpaid	0

Once the Annual Reports are filed the scoreboard reflects the filing.

#	Facility	Refrigeration Systems	ALD	Service Record	Annual Report	Payment	Inspection
1.	Wood Valley Cold Storage	2	1	1	Filed	Unpaid	0
2.	Wood Valley 2	1	0	0	Filed	Unpaid	0

Now the payment process can proceed, starting with Payments on the Main Menu or the "Make

	Caltornia Environmental Protection Agency Caltornia Environmental P		Home Page		Edit Profile	Loqout	R
By checking	g top box all facilities are select	ed				d in as: Fred Roo (Company A cod Valley Cold St	\dmin}
	Search by Facility/Company Name : Facilities with Medium Systems (200 to 2,000 lbs of ch Systems (50 to 200 lbs of charge) are not required to pa			vanced Search of Annual Report	Q Search in 2014" or "Facil	Reset Searc	
	Facility Listing	City	Responsibility Sy	ustom Tuno An		Record(s) Four	nd atus
	WOO001-001 (Wood Valley Cold Storage)	Woodland		arge Ye			atus
		•	nent Proces ment butto	•	ecking b	ox and	clicking
	(« Previous Make Payment					Ne	xt »

Payments" Quick Link. Selecting either of these methods will bring up the Payments screen.

In the example only one facility appears on the Payments screen even though there are two facilities registered to this company and both have filed Annual Reports. The reason is that one of the facilities has as its largest Refrigeration System a Medium sized system. The company voluntarily filed an Annual Report prior to 2014 when it is required, but is not required to make an Annual Fee payment until 2014. The facility is not shown as needing to make a 2012 Annual Fee payment. The medium facility will appear on the list in 2014.

Start the payment process by checking the box to select the facility and then clicking on the "Make Payment" button. The Payment Details screen will then open for the facilities selected.

Annually an exemption to the Annual Fee can be claimed by some facilities (see the RMP Regulation for Fee Exemption rules). There is a "Claim" button to activate the screen for claiming a fee exemption. If a fee exemption is granted this screen will show the exemption to the Annual Fee. The exemption will also show on the invoice and will be deducted from the total invoice amount.

If payments have not been received for previous years the screen will show "Previous Due" amounts that will be included in the next invoice along with the current fees.

Check this screen carefully before proceeding to Generate Invoice. Once an invoice is created it cannot be cancelled or regenerated.

	mpany Name : dress :	Wood Valley Cold Storage 200 Railroad St Woodland CA	95822				
#	Facility Name		Amount Due(\$)	Previous Due(\$)	Exemption	Fee Exemption (\$)	Total (\$)
1.		ld Storage (WOO001-001)	370.00	0.00	<u>Claim</u>	0.00	370.00
					Total Payme	ent Due: (\$)	370.00

Clicking the "Generate Invoice" button will create an invoice. A small window opens requiring confirmation for invoice creation. The Checkout screen for the invoice will open.

> <u>Mal</u>	<u>ke Payments</u> ≻ Che	ckout							Logged in a {Wood Vi	S: Fred Ro {Company alley Cold S
Inve Cor	ckout oice # : mpany Name : dress :	100008 Wood Valley C 200 Railroad S	Cold Storage it Woodland CA 95822	2			-	nt for Year :	12/23/2011 2010 <u>Pending</u>	
#	Facility Name Wood Valley Co	d Storage (WO		nount Due(\$) 370.00	Previo	us Due(\$) 0.00	Exemption No	Fee Exemption	on (\$)	Total (\$) 370.00
							Total Payme	ent Due: (\$)		370.00

From this screen a print version of the invoice document can be sent to the printer. If the invoice is to be paid with a check by mail the Payment Coupon is printed with the print version of the document.

				Print	Close		
	GOV	California Environmental Pr California Environmental Pr California Environmental Pr Phone: 1 (916) 324-251 Email: reftrackinfo@a	es Board	Invoice D	Detail		RR
Invoice No: 100008	Invoice For Year: 2010	ARB REF	ERENCE CODE: 02	Dated:	12/23/2011		
# Facility Name		Amount Due(\$)	Previous Due(\$)	Exemption	Total (\$)		
1 Wood Valley Cold Stora	ge (WOO001-001)	370.00	0.00	0	370.00		
A) TOTAL CHARGES					370.00		
B) PREVIOUS BALANCE					0.00		
C) TOTAL DUE (A+B)					\$370.00		
	Please detach and re	turn with your payme	nt.				
		sturn with your payme ck payable to CA ARB	nt.				
	Please make che		es Board	Payment	Stub		No.
invoice No: 100008	Please make che	California Environmental Pr California Environmental Pr California Environmental Pr California Environmental Pr Phone: 1 (916) 324-251 Email: reftrackinfo@:	es Board		Stub 12/23/2011		E Contraction
invoice No: 100008	Please make che	California Environmental Pr California Environmental Pr California Environmental Pr California Environmental Pr Phone: 1 (916) 324-251 Email: reftrackinfo@:	otection Agency tes Board 7 arb.ca.qov				
invoice No: 100008	Please make che	California Environmental Pr California Environmental Pr California Environmental Pr California Environmental Pr Phone: 1 (916) 324-251 Email: reftrackinfo@:	otection Agency tes Board 7 arb.ca.qov	Dated:			R
invoice No: 100008	Please make che Crown Invoice For Year: 2010 Air Resources Board	ck payable to CÁ ÁRB California Environmental Pr DAIR RESOURCE Phone: 1 (916) 324-261 Email: refrackinfo@ ARB REF	otection Agency tes Board 7 arb.ca.qov	Dated:	12/23/2011		
invoice No: 100008	Please make che Creation of Invoice For Year: 2010 Air Resources Board P.O. Box 1436	ck payable to CÁ ÁRB California Environmental Pr DAIR RESOURCE Phone: 1 (916) 324-261 Email: refrackinfo@ ARB REF	otection Agency tes Board 7 arb.ca.qov	Dated:	12/23/2011		NR.

The invoice may also be paid online with a credit card. This is done through a payment gateway and is secure. No credit card information is processed or stored by ARB. All online transactions are with a secure 3rd party system.

Credit Card Number:				*		
Expiration Date(MMYY):		*				
Amount:	370.00		×			
Invoice Number:					*	
Card Present:						
Address1: Address2: City: State/Province: Postal Code:						
Country:		Process				

Be prepared to enter the required information for the credit card processor. Once the invoice is paid a confirmation receipt will be created and can be printed.

Payments sent through the mail with the Payment Slip will be processed by ARB and a confirmation email will be sent to the company contact.

5.0 Using the RMP R3 Online Application – Air Districts and ARB Enforcement

5. USING THE RMP-R3 APPLICATION – AIR DISTRICTS AND ARB ENFORCEMENT

5.1. Air District and ARB Enforcement Roles

Air Districts and ARB Enforcement have specific roles and functions within the R3 program.



ARB and Air District roles are shown above. Each Air District has one or more AD Admin level users who are the administrators for all other users in the Air District. ARB Enforcement will add the first AD Admin for each Air District. When the first AD Admin is added in the Air District an email notification is sent to the new AD Admin user. The AD Admin can then add additional users within the Air District.

5.2. Facility Inspections

ARB has access to records for all facilities statewide and Air Districts have access to records for all facilities within the boundaries of the Air District. Inspections of all types of facilities can be entered into the R3 program. Facilities are divided into these categories for inspection:

- Facilities with Refrigeration System;
- Wholesaler/ Distributor; and
- Certified Reclaimers.

Inspectors can select the Inspection type from the Main Menu in the Inspection tab or from the Quick Links on the User Home Page (User Dashboard).

5.2.1. Un-Registered Facilities

While all facilities that have been registered in the R3 program will appear on the Facility screen to be inspected not all companies will have registered. Inspections can also be entered for facilities that have not been registered in the R3 program. See the screen below to show the button that starts an inspection process for a facility that has no record in the R3 program. The company should be advised to register in the R3 program.

5.2.2. Facility Screen



The example screen above shows Facilities with Refrigeration Systems that could have Inspection Records added. Selection of any Facility Name will begin the Inspection process.

5.2.3. Printing Pre-filled Facility Inspection Forms

Pre-filled inspection forms (see below) can also be generated for printout if the inspection is first to be conducted on paper.

www.arb. ca.gov /r3uat/inspection/print_pa	ge/facility_id:93	
	as recircles	
		Print Cancel
2000 Phone: 1 (916) 324-2517		RC
mail: reftrackinfo@arb.ca.qov		
dd Inspection Report for Company with Fa	ıcility	
ompany Name :	Kjb Co	
cility Name :	Kjb Co Plant #2	GHG - "RMP 1"
usiness Type(NAISC) :	923120	Nonconformance Issues
taileaa type(itwibe).	923120	
ucility ARB Registration Number :	923120 KJB001-002	
	KJB001-002	
cilty ARB Registration Number :	KJB001-002	0
icility ARB Registration Number :	KJB001-002	0
iningen Turne(NAISC) -	000100	noncomormance issues

5.2.4. Inspection Screens

Selecting the Facility name from the screen with the list of facilities opens the Inspection screens for the Facility. From here any existing inspections can be viewed or new inspections can be added.

4	alifornia Environmental Protection Agency	ARB RMP Home Page	Edit Profile Logout
COV	R3 Home Registration Annual Reg	oorting Reports Inspection	
ne > Inspection	15 > Record Inspection for Facility with Refrig	eration Systems	Logged in as: Arby Spect (ARB Inspect
	on Listing for 'Anvil & Armaments'		1 Record(s) Found
Inspec	ction Date	Inspector Name	Approval Status
<u>12/14/</u> ;		Magen Holloway	Approved
« Previous			Next »
Add	Delete Back		

In the example above there is one inspection on record for this facility. Clicking on the "Add" button will open a new inspection record for this facility.

R3 Hom	e Registration Annual Reporting Reports Inspection		Important Note: Be sure
	rd Inspection for Facility with Retrigeration Systems - Inspection form for Company Button on this Primary facility Inspection form to enable inspection of		to click "Save" button found at bottom of form to activate the Refrigeration Systems.
Add Inspection R	eport for Company with Facility		
	Company Name : ACME	GHG - "RMP 1"	
	Facility Name : Anvil & Armaments	Nonconformance Issues	
Busine	ss Type(NAICS) : 325920	Noncomormance issues	
Facility ARB Regi	tration Number : ACM002-001		
Facility Contact In	formation		
Salutation :	Mr First Name : Yosimite	Last Name : Sam	
Position :	Hunting Phone : 4155551212	-	
Email :	(E.g. xxxxxxxxxx) wtolson@arb.ca.gov		
Facility Address In	formation		
Street Address 1 :	Moria Mining Trail		
Street Address 2 :	Smelt#4	7	

It is important to note that one of the first actions required is to "Save" this form to activate the records for the Refrigeration Systems at this facility.

5.0 Using the R3 System

Refrigeration ID	Refrigerant Type	Full Charge in Pounds	Net Pounds of Refrigerant Added in Past Calendar Year	Date of Initial Installation	System Status	Not Inspected?	Inspection Status	
Freon Flame	Medium	500.00	0.00 ick "Save" bu	04/01/1954		•	Not Started	

In the example section of the inspection record (shown above) there is one Refrigeration System to be inspected at this plant. If there were more systems to be inspected then each would open to their own individual inspection sheet.

Also note that there is a button to add a refrigeration system that has not been registered in the R3 program. This allows an inspection of a refrigeration system found during the inspection but not included by the facility in their registration. The refrigeration system will be captured in the inspection only. To add the refrigeration system to the Facility record in R3 the company should be advised to update R3 by adding the refrigeration system.

The screen shows that the inspection of this system has not been started. There are situations where the inspector may choose not to inspect a Refrigeration System or may start inspecting a system and choose to stop. Clicking "Not Inspected" will record that the Refrigeration System was not inspected. Inspection status will show the process of the inspection for a Refrigeration System until the inspector clicks on "Refrigeration System Inspection Completed" at the bottom of the Refrigeration System inspection screen.

K Signature by a representative of the facility and date signed; (95387(a)(2)(K)) Refrigeration System Inspection Complete		Refrigeration System Inspection Complete	K Sigr	ature by a representative of the facility and date signed; (95387(a)(2)(K))	-	
Refrigeration System Inspection Complete	Refrigeration System Inspection Complete					
		Baak Saus Connel	igeration Sys	em Inspection Complete		
		Baak Sava Casad	· ·			
Back Save Cancel						
	Back	Dack				

In the example screen section below, the Recordkeeping section of the inspection, the inspector has marked several items with a "No" response, which generates Non-Compliance "X" marks and will list these regulation sections at the bottom of the form.

		onforma	nce Issue:	
Facility Registration	Yes	No	NC*	
s Facility Registration up to date? <u>95383</u>	۲	۲	×	<
Recordkeeping 95389	Yes	No	NC*	
All registration information is accurate as required by section <u>95383;(95389(a)(1))</u>	۲	۲		Non-Complia the requireme
All annual reports required by section 95388:(95389(a)(5))	۲	0		
Documentation:				the requireme
Leak inspection; (95389(a)(2))	0	۲	- × 4	
Leak detection systems (ALDs), if used; (95389(a)(2))	۲	0		
ALD system annual audit and calibration, if used; (95389(a)(2))	۲	0		
Conditions allowing repairs conducted more than 14 days after leak detection; (95389(a)(3))	۲	0		
Records of all refrigeration system service and leak repairs; (95389(a)(3))	0	۲	×	
Retrofit or retirement plans if applicable; (95389(a)(4))	۲	0		
Exemptions submitted and notification of approval, denial, revocation, modification pursuant to: 95397; (95389(a)(6))	۲	0		
invoices for all refrigerant purchases; (95389(a)(7))	۲	0		
Records of all shipments of refrigerants for reclamation or destruction; 95389(a)(8)(A) through 95389(a)(8)(E)				
Name and address shipped to;(95389(a)(8)(A))	۲	0		
Weight (pounds) of high-GWP refrigerants shipped; (95389(a)(8)(B))	۲	0		
Types of high-GWP refrigerants shipped; (95389(a)(8)(C))	۲	0		
Date of shipment; (95389(a)(8)(D))	۲	0		
Purpose of shipment(e.g. reclamation, destruction, etc); (95389(a)(8)(E))	۲	۲		
Records of refrigerant system full charge calculations (data, measurements, calculations, assumptions); (95389(a)(9))	0	۲	×	

At the bottom of the inspection form (below) is space for notes about the inspection and the summary of Non-Compliance issues noted during the inspection.

Notes :	h. b.
Inspection summar	у
Inspection Date: Nonconformance Issues :	Section 95389 (a) (2) Section 95389 (a) (3) Section 95389 (a) (9) Section 95383 (a) (9)
Inspector First Name : Email :	kentrosner@agreeya.com
Back Save	Submit for Manager Approval Cancel Print Final Submission when inspection is completed

The overall Facility Inspection record can be saved and then completed at a later time, or just saved to preserve what has been entered so far. There is also a button to complete the inspection and submit for the inspector's manager's review.

5.2.5. Inspection of Distributor/Wholesaler or Certified Reclaimer

The R3 methods of inspections at Distributor/Wholesaler or Certified Reclaimer facilities are very similar to the Facility Inspection. From the Main Menu > Inspection screen the inspector selects the type facility to inspect, either Wholesaler/Distributor or Reclaimer. The Facility screen then presents only facilities matching this type of company.

Inspections of these facilities have fewer components than inspections of facilities with refrigeration systems. The inspection tasks are more focused on administrative and record keeping requirements. The R3 process recording and submission for these type of facility inspections is the same as described above.

5.2.6. Manager Inspection Review

ARB Inspector Admin users are the managers to review inspections by ARB Inspectors and AD Admin users are the managers to review inspections by AD Inspectors. These Admin level users perform reviews once an inspection record has been submitted for manager review. Inspectors and the Admin level users receive emails notifying them of inspections that have been submitted for review. The managers review the inspection, can make comment and either Approve or Reject the inspection record. An email notification of acceptance or rejection is sent to the inspector. If an inspection is rejected the inspector will make the required changes to the inspection record an re-submit for approval.



5.3. Special Instructions for Error Correction

5.3.1. Screen Entries

Each entry screen in the R3 program evaluates the data fields for several conditions. Conditions can be that data must be of a certain length of characters, data must be in a certain format (numbers, dates), or that data is required and the field cannot be left blank. The program will display error messages at the top of the screen to alert the user to the specific error condition.



	Invironmental Protection Age		ARB RM	P Home	Page	Edit Profile Logout	So
GOV R3 Ho	me Registration	Annual Reporting	Payments	Reports	Inspection		AUX.
me > Facility > Add						Logged in as: Fr	ed Rodgers
						{Cor	npany Admin}
						{Wood Valley	Cold Storage}
Location	address required						
City is re-							
Please e	nter valid location z	ipcode					
	ddress is required						
	ity is required						
	nter valid mailing z	pcode					
	de is required						
	is required						
	erson first name is erson Last Name is						
	ter contact phone						
	ovide a valid conta						
						Help for t	nis Pane
New Facility De	tails						
Company Name	* Wood Valley Co	ld Storage					
Facility Name	* Wood Valley 3	-					
Facility Contact F	erson Information						

5.3.2. Other Errors

In other types of error conditions, common to all web based programs, the local device may lose connection to the ARB server. In this case the user may experience data loss on the current page. In many cases reconnection to the Internet and the program will re-establish connection to the process the user was in and work can continue without any significant interruption.

5.4. Caveats and Exceptions

All public users must have Internet connectivity for access to the program. ARB users must have connectivity to the ARB network for access to the program.

6.0 USING THE XML UPLOAD

6. USING THE XML UPLOAD (OPTIONAL)

The R3 system provides an optional method for companies with refrigeration systems to upload data about the facilities, refrigeration systems, ALD systems and service records in an XML batch format. This functionality is useful for companies with multiple facilities and multiple refrigeration systems to load data without having to do data entry screen by screen.

Upload of XML data is useful during the registration process, to load facility, refrigeration system, and ALD system information. Upload of XML data is useful annually during the Annual Reporting process, to add refrigeration system service records.

Note: Not all data required by the R3 system is loaded using the XML batch process. The company and facility users must review the data screens to add required data following an XML batch upload.

6.1. Where do the XML files come from?

The R3 program accepts data through this optional XML batch process. Using the XML process is not required, however it can reduce the workload of data entry. Each company wanting to use this optional process is responsible for providing the data in the required XML format that is used to load it in to the R3 program. The company IT staff will understand this process and the XML requirements.

Some companies use 3rd party Refrigerant Management Systems (RMS) which may provide a method to create the ARB formatted XML data for the R3 system. Check with your RMS vendor to see if this is available.

6.2. XML Upload Test

A "Test Your XML" test function is available from the Main Menu on the public Welcome screen. From this XML Test screen the user can download the latest posted documentation on the requirements and process for the XML process.

		enmental Protection Agency	AR	3 RMP Home Page		
	R3 Home	Reports & Forms	Contact FAQ Surve	y Test Your XML H	elp	
	Home >> Test Your XML					
	Validate Your XML				XML Pro	ocess Latest XSD Latest Sample XML
	Validate Your XML					
	Upload XML : *		BrowseValidate	•		 Download XML process documentation XML Process documentation XSD (XML format definition)
Test X	KML process b	•				Sample XML
1)	browsing to file; and	find the lo	ocal XML tes	t		
2)	Validate			<u>itacts</u> <u>A-Z In</u>	<u>idex</u>	

When the test XML file is uploaded the R3 system will evaluate the XML structure and will review the data to test for required fields and specific allowed values. Any errors will be displayed for review. A sample error message is shown below.

Data entered into the test system is not saved by the R3 system. Tests can be repeated as often as required.

Element	Error Description	Line #
Element 'Salutation'	[facet 'enumeration'] The value 'Mr.' is not an element of the set {Mr', 'Mrs', 'Ms', 'Dr', 'Prof}.	line 22
Element 'Salutation'	'Mr.' is not a valid value of the atomic type 'SalutationType'.	line 22
Element 'Phone'	'916-555-5555' is not a valid value of the atomic type 'PhoneType'.	line 27
Element 'RefrigerantType'	[facet 'enumeration'] The value 'HCFC-123' is not an element of the set {R-11', 'R-12', 'R-13', 'R-113', 'R-114', 'R-115', 'R-116', 'R-22', 'R-123', 'R-124', 'R-141b', 'R-142b', 'R-225ca', 'R-225cb', 'R-365mfc', 'R-43-10mee', 'PFC-116', 'PFC-218', 'CARE 30', 'Dynalene HC', 'R-45fa', 'R-365mfc', 'R-43-10mee', 'PFC-116', 'PFC-218', 'CARE 30', 'Dynalene HC', 'EP-88', 'Ethylene glycol', 'Isceon MO89', 'Potassium formate - Pekasol', 'Propylene glycols', 'R-13b1', 'R-401A', 'R-401B', 'R-402A', 'R-409A', 'R-403B', 'R-404A', 'R-406A', 'R-407A', 'R-407B', 'R-407F', 'R-407F', 'R-409A', 'R-409A', 'R-410A', 'R-413A', 'R-414A', 'R-417A', 'R-417A', 'R-421A', 'R-422A', 'R-422B', 'R-422D', 'R-423A', 'R-427A', 'R-437A', 'R-438A', 'R-500', 'R-502', 'R-503', 'R-507', 'R-508B', 'R-1270', 'R-717', 'R-744', 'R-600a', 'R-601', 'R-290}.	line 45
Element 'RefrigerantType'	'HCFC-123' is not a valid value of the atomic type 'RefrigerantBlendType'.	line 45
Element	[facet 'enumeration'] The value 'Manual' is not an element of the set {Calculated from	line

Figure 8 Sample XML Test Error Messages

6.3. XML Upload

XML upload into the R3 program can be processed during the Registration process and during the Annual Reporting process.

During registration XML is uploaded after the company profile is completed and before the first facility information is entered. There is a Menu item for "Batch Upload (XML)" located on the Main Menu in the Registration tab. The upload will create all the facility records, with associated refrigeration systems and ALD systems.

During the Annual Report process upload of XML is done as the first action prior to the start of the Annual Report process. There is a Menu item for "Batch Upload (XML)" located on the Main Menu in the Annual Report tab. This makes the service record data available for each facility at the facility Annual Report is created.

5.2 Special Instructions for Error Correction

Errors found during the XML upload are displayed for user correction. There are no restrictions on the number of times an XML can be corrected and retried. However, the XML upload is an all or nothing process. XML data files are either accepted or not. If the XML is not accepted the XML data is not used by the R3 program.

5.3 Caveats and Exceptions

The XML data must be formatted in a specific manner that conforms with ARB requirements.

7.0 REPORTS

7. REPORTS

Reports are available from the Reports tab on the Main Menu. Different user roles have access to different groups of reports produced from the R3 program.

Reports are easy to display onscreen, print or export as data.

	Ø Ai	Environmental Protection A	oard	ARB RMP Ho		Edit Profil	e <u>Loqout</u>	R
	Home > Reports > RMP F			porting raymenta report		l	Logged in as: AR	
	Annual Reporting List of Facilities	Inspection	Paym	ents <u>Registration</u>	RMP Program	-		
Filters to refine the data selected for report	PLACE	EA AQMD R COUNTY APCD MENTO METROP	City (All) Antioc Aubur b,I;gm	h a	oody of report			
		EGO COUNTY AP 👻	city	rch Reset	\checkmark		Button	s to:
Click link to	Distric	xt	City 🖉	Number of Large Facilities	Number of Medium Facilities	Num	•	Print
view detail report			Antioch	0	1	0	•	Export to Excel
view detail report				0	1	0	•	Export to Word
	<	SubTota	San Rafael	1	0 2	0	•	Export to PDF
	Figure 0 Se	mple of a l	Doport					I

Figure 9 Sample of a Report

Detail reports are displayed by click through on links provided in the summary level reports.

Annual Reporting	Inspection	Payments	Registration	RMP Pr	ogram		
Company	126457 126458 ABC	Facility (All) 126458/ 126458/ 126458/ 126458/	8	City (All) Antioch Auburn b,l;gmł		Facility Size Category	(All) Large Mediur Small
Company	Facility	Address	City	Zip	District	Facility Size Category	Date Facility Last Inspected
ACME	Anvil & Armaments	Moria Mining Trail Smelt #4	Antioch	94566	BAY AREA AQMD	Medium	
	Facility Total						
Company Total	·						
bo jangles good eats	eats 1	939 ellis	san fran	94109	BAY AREA AQMD	Medium	
bo jangies good cats							

Figure 10 Sample Detail Report

• End of manual